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Eileen Homer, Danelle Homer, n/k/a Danelle Morgan, Dayna Homer,

Leighannc Reynolds and Paula Boho, hy their attorneys Cureton Caplan, P.C., herehy !lie this
complaint alleging unequal pay, sexual harassment, discrimination, retaliation and related causes
of action against Foodcrafters Distributing Company ("Foodcrafters"), Tmpieal Plant CalTicrs,
Inc. ("TPC"), Little Brown Properties, Inc. ("LBP"), Transystems, Inc. ("Transystems") and
ABC Corporations being fictitious business entities yet unidentified (colledively referred to as
the "Entity Defendants") and against John P. Brown, Robert Roche, Peter Wood, Al Avila,
Michael Alfilno and Jane/John Does 1-10, being fictitious individuals not yet identified as aiders
and abeltolO of the discriminatory actions of the Entity Defendants; Plaintiff Dayna Borner's
disL'Timination claim also constitutes a violation of the Equal Pay Act. All of the Plaintiffs allege
that they were subjectcd to a sexually and racially hostile work environment which included
repeated crude, indecent scxual commerlts, sex jokes, sexual advances and unwanted touching,
racially charged comments and that defendants created such a sexually and racially hostile work
environment that they were forced to resign.
PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Eileen Horner is a female individual who resides at 303 North Arthur Drive,
Edgewater Park, New Jersey 08010. She was employed by Foodcrafters, TPC, and/or LEI' as an
Office/Customer Service Manager hetween September 2000 through March 2002.
2. Plaintiff Danelle Horner n/kla Danelle Morgan ("Danelle Homer") is a female individual
who Ttlsides at 303 North Arthur Drive, Edgewater Park, New Jersey 08010. She was employed
by Foodcrafters, TPC, and/Or LBP in the ellstomer service office between October 2000 thTOugh
April 2002.
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at 303 North Arthur Drive,

08010. She was employed by Foodcrafter~, TPC, and/or LBP in

the customer service office bctween September 2001 through April 2002.
4. Plaintiff Leighanne Reynolds ("Reynolds") is a female individual who resides at lull
Albert Street, Hainesport, New Jersey, 08036. She was employed by Foodcrafters, TPC, and/or
LBP in the customer service officc bctwecn February 2002 through May 2002.
5. Plaintiff Paula Hobo ("Bobo") is a female individual who resides at 171 Washington
Street, Mount Holly, New Jersey 08060. She was employed by Foodcrafters, TPC, and/or LBP
in the customer service office between February 2001 through May 2002.
6. Defendant F(Xld(:rafl.ers Distributing Company

("Foodcrafte~")

is a tor-profit company

with its principal place of business located at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka, Florida 32703.
7. Defendant Foodcrafters also has ofllces and operates a location at 8192 National
Highway, Pennsauken, New Jersey 08110.
8. Defendant Tropical Plant Carriers, Inc. (''TPC'') is a for-profit company with its
principal place of business located at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka, Florida 32703.
9. Defendant Little l3rown PropcJ1ies, Inc. ("LBP") is a tor-profit company with its
principal place of business is located at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka, Florida 32703.
I O. Defendant Transystems, Inc. (,Transystems") is a fOl'-proiit company that is a subsidiary
of LBP and a related entity to TPC with a principal place of business located at 1350 Sheeler
Road, Apopka, Florida 32703.
II. Defendants ABC Corporations are yet unidentified business entities that are responsible
for the discrimination against plaintiffs and/or the sexually and racially hostile work environment
to which plaintiffs were submitted.
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12. Defendant Robert Rochtl ("Roche") is a shareholder and the President of
Foodcrafters and the general manager of TPe and was formerly the vice-president of
sales for TPC and maintains a business office at J 350 Sheeler Road, Apopka, Florida.
13. Defendant Peter Wood ("Wood") is a shareholder and vice-president of
Foodcrafters, the vice-president and chief financial omcer (>f LBP, the chief executive
officer of Transystcms and maintains a business oHiee at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka,
Florida.
14. Defendant John P. Brown ("Brown") is a shareholder and assistant secretary of
Foodcraftcrs, the vice-president and chicI' executive oHicer of LBP and maintains a
business oHicc at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka, Florida.
15. Defendant Michael Alfano ("Alfano") was the General Manager of Foodcrafters and
maintains a business ofllce at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka, Florida.
16. Defendant Al Avila ("Avila") was the Terminal Manager of Foodcrafters' Pennsauken
location and maintained a business ollice at 8192 National Highway, Pennsauken, New Jersey

OSIIO.
17. Delillldants Jane/John Does 1-10 are fictitious namcs of individuals who are liable for the
discriminatory conduct and hostile work environment that remain yet unidcntified.
J8. Foodcrafters, TPC, Transystems and LBP, collectively operate as a single integrated

enterprise.

Accordingly, the Entity Defendants are all liable for the acts of discrimination

committed by anyone of them.
19. Defendants have cOmmon ownership and common management as evidenced by the
fac! that many of the same individuals comprise the management team of each company:
a. John E. Bmwn is the Chief Executive OHicer of Foodcratters, the
President and sole owner ofLBP, and the secrctary and treasurer of 'fpc.
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b. John P. Brown, the son of John E. Brown, is one of t1m:e owners of
Foodcraflen;. He is currcntly thc assistant secretary of Foodcrafiers. In 2000, he
was the President ofLBP, in 2001 and currently he is the Vice-President and chief
executive officer of tha.t company. Hc is also an officer ofTmnsystems.

c. Diane Ludwig, the daughter of John E. Brown, is President of LBP and
President ofTPC.
d. Linda Roche, also a daughter of J01m E. Brown, is the secretary and
treasurer of LI3P. She is also the comptroller of Little Brownie Broken;, another
related entity. She is also an officer of Transystems.
e. Robert Roehc, Linda Roche's husband, is an owner and the President of
Foodc"Tafters and the General Manager of TPC. He was also the vice president of
sales ofTPC until 1999.

f.

Pcter Wood is a shareholder and Vice President of Foodcrafters, the Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of LAP and the Chief Financial Officer of
Transysterns.
20. Dcfcndants' operations are interrelated:

a. Defendants' share a common address at 1350 Sheeler Road, Apopka,
Florida 32703.
h. Defendanls share common management.
C.

Defendants are commonly owned.

d. The paychecks issued to the employees or Foodcrafiers are laheled
"Foodcrallers Distributing Co/TPe, 1350 Sheeler Roa.d, Apopka, Florida 32703."

e. Defendants have onc centralized human relations department located at its
Apopka, Florida location.
f. For all human relations issues, lhe employces at Foodcrafters' New Jersey
offiees are directed to contact Defendants' Apopka, Florida location.
2 J. As Office/Customer Service Manager at Foodcrafters' Pennsauken location, Eileen
Homer was the direct supervisor of each of the other Plainti il'S as well as a number of other
employees from time to time.
22. Eilecn Homcr's imlllcdiate supervisor was Altimo; Homer was required to report dircctly

to Alfano.
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2J. Eileen Homer also reported to and was required to work closely with Avila.

24. TIlfoughout the course of Plaintiffs' employment with Foodcraftcrs, contrary to law,
Defendants had no employee handbook or discrimination policy. Nor did any of the Defendants
provide Plaintifll> any int()mlation or training related to harassment or discrimination. Thus,
Defendants are strictly liable for any sexual harassment occurring in their workplace, and have
no defense to Plaintilli;' claims.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
25. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to 28 V.S.c. §§ 1331, 1343 and 1367,29
U.S.C. § 206(d)(l) and 42 V.S.C. §§2000e-5(t)(l) and (3) and sup~llemental jurisdiction over
Plaintiffs state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §I367. Jurisdiction is also invoked pursuallt to
28 U.S.c. § 1332(a), as the Plaintiffs and Detendants are citizens of different states and the
amount in controversy for each Plaintiff exceeds $75,000.00, exclusive of interest and costs.
26. All jurisdictional prerequisites to the filing of a claim pursuant to Title VJI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 have been met, to wit:
27. Plaintiffs filed a Charge of Discrimination alleging ho~tile environment based on sex, and
discrimination based upon sex.
2!!. On Mareh 26, 2003, the EEOC is~ucd a finding of probable cause and filed an action

against Foodcraftcrs, TPC and LBP on June 11, 2003 in the United States District Court for the
District of New Jersey.
29. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 139J(b) and 42 U.S.C. §2000e-S(t)(I)
and (3).
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INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

30. Defendants employed cach Plaintiff in the customer serviee office at Foodcrafters'
Pennsauken operation.

Defendants subjected each Plaintiff while employed there to a

discriminatory environment because of their sex. With respect to one or more of the Plaintiffs,
Defendants paid lower wages than male employees, required Plaintiffs to work longer hours,
gave them less favorable methods of compensation, and gave them less desirable positions and
duties. In addition, Defendants condoned and tolerated a workplace plagued with unwanted
sexual advances and touching, and derogatory, degrading and intimidating sexual comments and
jokes. One high-ranking officer of Entity Defendants went so far as to describe Defendants as
"just a man's company." Defendants also subjected Plaintitl;, to a racially hostile environment
rampant with epithets designed to degrade and intimidate because of race, color andlor national
origin. This continuous pattern of discriminatory treatment to which Plaintiffs were subjected
forced Eileen Homer, Danelle Homer, Dayna Horner, Reynolds and Sobo to resign.
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

31. Plaintiffs incorporate the averments of all preceding allegations of this Complaint as
though full y sct forth herein.
Defendants Created a Sexually Hostile Work Environment

32. As Tenninal Manager of F(Jodcraiters, Avila held a supcrvisory position at Foodcraftcrs'
Pennsauken location. Avila engaged in unlawful conduct which led directly to the creation of a
sexually charged and hostile working environment for Plaintiil);. Exanlples of Avila's sexually
charged and sexually offensive conduct and comments include:
a. Regularly e()mmenting that Reynolds was wearing tight jeans and staring at her
buttocks as she walked by him. On one occasion, he put the telephone down in
the middle of a COllversation to stare at her buttocks.
7
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b. Telling Danelle Homer that she looked sexy in shorts und that it was going to be II
long hot summer if she kept wearing short~.
c. Frequently making sexually charged comments about women in general.
d. Subjecting the PJaintift'~ and other employees to his sexually offensive conduct by
repeatedly making sexual advances and phySically touching another female
employee, including staring at her breasts, commenting on her breasts and
caressing her shoulders.
e. Regularly commenting that women usually deserve getting smacked around
because they have a way of pushing men's buttons and announcing that women
needed to be kept in their place. On one occasion, a driver had beaten and thrown
urine on his girlfriend in the Foodcrafter's parking lot.

Avila laughed at the

situation, saying, that the woman had gotten a "golden shower," but "not the right
way," that she probably deserved the beating because "she was trash anyway,"
and that she probably beat herselCup to blame her boyfriend.
[

Criticizing Reynolds, referring to her as a "waste," a "dumb blonde," and a
"moron," He also told her that she "looked trashy" whcn discussing paperwork
prepared the prior day.

g, Regularly commenting that women are only good for one thing

sex.

h. Commenting that because his wife was older than him and went to bed at 9:00
p.m., he had to release his tension with other women, often commenting that he
did not "get it anymore_"

.D. The dock manager, Ken Brandt ("Brandt"), also subjected each of the Plaintiffs to
repeated unwelcome sexual comments and propositions. Examples of Brandt's sexist remarks
and hostile behavior towards the Plaintiffs include:
8
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a. Repeatedly telling Eileen Horner that she lookcd sexy, that her jeans
lookcd good, and that she had a great body for a 45 year-old woman
b. Staring at Eileen Horner's buttocks while making scxually offensive
commcnts.
c. Proudly telling Eileen Homer, in response to her inquiry about whether he
ever spoke about non-sexual things, "no, J live fot sex"

He constantly talked

about getting "laid" by both his wife and girlfricnds.
d. Propositiooing Reynolds to go home with him, dance on the pool table filr
him, and strip for him.
e. Telling Reynolds and Bobo that ifhe had $200.00 in his pocket, he would
give it all to Reynolds to see her dance.
f.

Repeatedly commenting on his sex. life to the Plaintiffs and others.

g. Telling Danelle Horner that he wanted DanelIe to pull duwn her pants and
sit on his face.
h. Commenting to Dayna Horner after she made a comment that she would
"hit" Brandt if he continucd bringing her additional work, "Ooh bahy, you're
getting me aroused, don't make any promises you can't keep. Doo't leave me
hanging like that." Dayna Homer was 16 years old at the time.
i.

Telling Danelle and Dayna Horner that he did not care whether hugging

them was sex.ual harassment, and hugged them both tightly, pressing his body into
theirs.
34. William Walker, a dock worker, also contributcd to the hostile work environment. On
one occasion, he grabbed Dayna Homer, who was only 16 years old at the time, hugged ber,
kissed her hand, and told her lhat she looked good.
<)
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35. Upper managelllent actively participated in the creation of a hostile work envirollment

with il)<Jppwpli3te

sex-ha~ed

comments. Examples of sexually charged eOlllmcnts and conduct

of management include:
a. Allimo telling a female co-worker that he would "talk to Iher] in 28 days" because
she was "(1) the same eycle as [his] wife."
h. Alfano repeatedly commenting to Danelle Homer and others that she needed
breast implants and stating that he would start a collection to raisc money for her
to have the procedure.
c. Alfano caressing Danelle Homer's feet de~pite her protests for him to stop.
d. Aliano making a sports bet with Danelle Homer, telling her that if he won, she
had to wear the jersey of the team for whom he rooted . . and nothing else.
e. Alfimo responding to Danelle Horner's request for a raise by telling her that she
could get anything she wanted if she slept with "10hnllY" Brown, (lne of
Defendants' owncrs, because he "liked his women."

f.

Failure of all upper management to set in place appropriate policies and
procedures for preventing or remediating sexual harassment in the workplace, and
failing to consider Plaintiffs' complaints of harassment.

36. Defendants also engaged in discriminatory employment practices that created a hostile
working environment. Examples of such conduct includes:
a. Avila instructing Eileen Homer thai she was to hire female employees based on
their breast size, hair color and figurc.
b. Avila advising Eileen Homer to hire an attractive Italian woman with large
breasts and large lips because the womlU1's large lips would be good for oral sex.
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c. Hiring a woman with no tmcking experience for an assistant dispatcher

po~ition

heeause she had large breasts and "made for great scenery."
37. Plaintiffs Danelle Homer, Dayna Homer, Bobo and Reynolds regularly complained to
Eileen Homer, Avila and Alfilllo about the unwanted sexual advances and sex-has cd comments.
38. Eileen Homer regularly complained to Alfano about Avila's sexual advances and sexbased jokes and commcnts dirccted at Pla.intiffs and towards his disL'timinatory and degrading
comments ahout women in general. Eileen Horner also complained to Avila and Alfano about
the sexually charged conduct and comments of other male employees.

Alfano generally

responded by laughing or with statements such as "boys will be hoys." He often said nothing.
Avila once responded that because she was employed at a trucking company, she should accept
the sexually chargcd atmosphere.
Defendants Discriminated Against Eileen Homer Based on Sex

39. Defendants required Eileen Homer to work longer hours than her male counterparts and
paid her on less favorable tenns than her male counterparts.
40. Alfano consistently required Eileen Homer, a salaried manager, to work 50 or more hours
per week without overtime pay. Yet, Detendants only required that a male salaried manager
work less hours per week. Eileen Horner complained to Alfano about the disparity in working
hours hetween herself and the male manager on several occasions to no avail.
4 I. Eileen Homer then requested from Defendants that she be paid hourly.

Defendants

denied her request because she was a manager, which, according to Alfano, was a salaried
position.
42. Detl;lIldants then paid another male manager at an hourly rate.
43. Eileen Horner complained to Alfano and Avila about her hours and pay in relation to
these male managers. Altlll1() and Avila responded that it was not her concern and took no
II
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responded lhal "this is a man's company," a stutement that hc

made to Eileen Horner.

44. An upper level /t~male employee reiterated the phrase "this is a man's company" and
similar phrases to Eilee1l Homer, stating that she was treated different! y than her male colleagues
"because I don'! have a d--- between my legs. This is a man's company", "if you are a woman,
you will always get blamed" and "you can't get anywhere in this company as a woman."
Defendants Discriminated Against Danelle Horner Based on Sex
45. In September 2001, Foodcralters employed Danelle Homer as a part-time employee. In
November 2001, a full-time customer service positi(m became available.

Despite DaneHe

Homer's interest in the full-time position, Alfano told her thut she could not apply for the
position because her mother, Eileen Horner, was the customer service manager. Alfano took this
position even though the company previously permitted Danelle Homer to work as a full-time
customer representative from October 2000 through August 2001.
46. At that time, there was no company policy regarding the hiring of family members as
evidenced by the fact that other family members worked together for Defendants.
47. In December 2001, a full-time dispatch position became available. Punelle Homer asked
to apply for the position. Avila told her that she could not apply because she was a woman and
women are not "geographically inclined."
48. Immediutely after, another femule employee asked Avila if she could apply for the
position. Avila told her that she could not have the position because she was a woman and he
put his hand up saying "I am not getting into this."
49. Danelle Homer complained to Alfano, who agreed with Avila, and added that the drivers
would not like taking orders frolll a woman.
50. Defendants hired a male to fill the rull-time dispatch position.
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51. When the male who had heen hired for the full-time di~palch position quit a few weeks
later, Danelle Horner again asked Deltmdants if she could apply

(()r

the position; DclC,ndant

denied her the opportunity for a second time. Defendants hired another male for the position.
52. Danelle Horner complained to shareholders of the company, Robert Roche and Peter
Wood. Roche told Danelle Homer that he would train her for the position if she was willing to
"cro~s

the fence"

Roche never trained Danelle Homer for the position and no fulther

investigation or action was taken.

Dayna Horner was Paid Less Than Similarly Situated Male Employees
53. Dayna Homer was hired by the entity defendants in 2001 as a part time customer service
representative earning $7.00 per hour.
54. In March 2002, Dayna Homer received a pay raise to $8.25 per hour.
55. Dayna Homer was told that because she was a high school student, $8.25 was the highest
hourly rate that Entity Defendants would pay even though the established part-time ratc was
$9.50 per hour.
56. The Entity Defimdants also employed a male employee, Donald Kennedy, in the
customer service otlice pari-time. Kennedy perfOlmed substantially the same work as Dayna
Horner. Kennedy was also a high-school student. The Entity Defendants paid Kennedy $9.50
per hour from the commcncement of his employment with the customer service ontec.
57. Dayna Homer complained to Avila and Alfano ahoullhc disparity In pay. Avila ignored
Dayna Homer's complaints on two separate occasions. Aliano responded that Kennedy's rate of
pay was unrelated to her rate of pay and changed the subject.
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Defendants Discriminated and Created a Hostile Work Environment Based on
Race. Color and/or National Origin
58. Defendants' employees and supervisors contaminated the Foodcrafters' office with
raciaJJy offensive jokes and comments. Defendants condoned this illegal behavior. Examples of
(lHensive comments based on race, color and/or national origin include:

a. Avila and Brandt repeatedly making race-based jokes in the presence of
Reynolds, a Caucasian woman who has a son who is part AFrican·American and
part American· Indian aller discovering the race/color of her son.
b. Avila and Brandt repeatedly stating that Reynolds would become romant.ically
involved only with blaek mcn.
e. Brandt commenting that they needed to kcep Reynolds off the dock and away
from an African American employec because she would be salivating.

Avila

made similar comments.
d. Brandt commenting "How do you stop a black man from raping a woman? TIlrow
him a basketbalL"

e. A driver asking jilr a fe'male African·American employee, by reftming to her as
the "big assed black mama," and then commenting to ilobo that she had "a black
woman's ass that would be good for

f~--ing

doggie stylc" while making an

obsccne hand gesture to indicate sexual movements.
f.

Avila commcnting that "all of the black people look alike, so you can just piece
together any body parts," referring to the September II, 200J terrorist attacks.

g. Avila commenting that tbe September J 1 tragedy was "no big loss" because

mostly foreigncrs were killed and that the event will teach "those foreigners" not

to come over h"re.
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h. A vila stating that the St:ptember 11 tragedy was a "good thing" because
/ill-eigners came to theUniterl

St~tes

and '"wiped out their own people."

59. Eileen Horner and Reynolds complained about the racially offensive comments, but no
remedial action was taken.
60_ In addition to the racially charged comments, Defendants' employment practices

contributed to the racially-charged work environment.

Examples of race-based employment

practices include:
a. Avila instructing Eileen Horner that she could not hire African-American women
because they "stink" and he did not want to work with "them" or train "them."
b. Avila refusing to hire an African-American woman even though shc was qualified
for a position. When Eileen Homer complained to Alfano about the situation,
Alfimo laughed and responded "he said that?"
61. Prior to learning that Reynolds' SOn was part African-American, Avila dotcd over her.

He offered her help with her work and assured her that if she needed anything else, to let him
know.
62. After learning of her son's race, Avila's treatment of and attitude towards Reynolds
changed.

Avila intentionally gave Reynolds wrong answers to

h~r

questions nr refused to

answer her questions altogether.
63. Avila told Eileen Ilorner that Reynolds was "dumber than dirt and to "shitcan" her.
64. When Eilecn Homer questioncd Avila ahout his statemcnt, he simply laughed

1Il

response. Avila was unahle tn provide Eileen Homer with any specilic complaint regarding
Reynolds' work perfonnance.
65. Eileen Homer complained to Altimo ahout Avila's racist attitude_ Alfano responded that
he did not realize that Avila was prejudiced.
15
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COUNT I
Hostile Work Environment Based on Sex in
Violation ofthe New Jersey Law Against Discrimination. N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 ct. seq.
66. Plaintiffs incorporate the averments of all preceding allegations of this Complaint as
though tully set forth herein.
67. Defendants subjected each Plaintiff to a hostile work environment plagued by offensive
and UJ1wanted touching and derogatory, degrading and sexist remarks.
6~.

The cumulative effect of Defendants' repeated. crude, and indecent comments, coupled

with the unwanted touching and sexual advances directed at Plaintif1l; were so severe and
pervasive as to make reasonable women in the Plaintiffs' position believe that the conditions of
employment were altered and thc work cnvirorllncnt was hostile and/or abusive.
69. The work cnvirorUllCllt consisted of frequent sexually charged comments and conduct,
much of which was directed at Plaintiffs and caused a sexually hostile work environment that
was unreasonable and unhealthy for the Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs were forced to resign from their
employment between March 2002 through May 2002.
70. As a result of the aforesaid sexually hostile work environment and other discriminatory
eOndU1.1, Plaintiffs have sutTered emotional distress, inconvenience, loss of enjoyment of life and
other emotional damages.
71. Defendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred m the

workplace.
72. Defendants knew or should have known about the discriminatory conduct, yet failed to
take prompt and etlcctive remedial actions.
73. Defendants conduct was intentional and malicious and in wanton and willful disregard of
the rights of others.
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discriminat.ed against Plaintiffs in the terms and condit.ions or their

employment in violation of the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N J. S.I\. 1O:5~ 1 et. seq,
WHER EFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against all Defendants for lost wages and
benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest, atlnmey's fees and
such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

COlJNT II
Discrimination on the Basis of Sex Against Eileen Horner
in Violation of the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination. N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et. seq.
75. Plaintiffs incorporate the averments of all preceding allegations of this Complaint as
though full y set forth herein.
76. Defendants discriminated against Eileen Homer because of her sex.
77. Defendants treated Eileen Homer less favorably in her terms and conditions of
employment than similarly situated male employees by paying her on less favorable terms and
requiring her to work more hours.
78. Defendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred in the
workplace.
79. Defendants knew

Or

should have knowlJ about the discriminatory conduct, yet failed to

take prompt and eHective remedial actions.
80. Defendants conduct was intentional and malicious and in wanton and willful disregard of
the rights of otJlers.
8 J. The disparate treatment to which Defendants have subjected Eileen HOOler is in violation
ofthe New Jerscy Law Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et. seq.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Eileen !lamer, demands judgment against all Defendants for lost
wages and bcncilts, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
attomey's fees and such other relief as the COUli deems just and proper.
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COUNT III

Uiscdmination on the Basis of Sex Against llanelle Horner
in Violation ofthe New Jersey Law Against lliscrimination, N.J. S.A. lO;5~1 ct. scq.
82. Plaintiffs incorporate the avcnncnts of all preceding allegations of this Complaint as
though fully set t(nth herein.
83. Defendants discriminated against Danelle Homer because of her sex.

84. Defendants treated Danelle Homer less favorably in the terms and conditions of her
employment by refusing to consider her qualifications for a position and filling the position with
men.
85. Defendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred ill the
workplace.
86. Detendants kncw or should have known about the discriminatory conduct, yct failed to
take prompt and etlective remedial actions.
87. Defendants conduct was intentional and malicious and in wanton and willful disregard of
the rights of others.
88. The disparate treatment to which Defendants have suhjeeted Danelle Homer is in
violation of the New Jersey Law Against Discliminatioll, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et.

~eq.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Danelle Homer, demands judgment against all Defendants for los!
wages and benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
attorney's fees and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
COUNT IV

Discrimination on the Basis of Sex Against llayna Horner
in Violation of the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 ct. seq.
89. Plaintiffs incorporate the avemlCnls of all preceding allegations of this Complaint as
though fully set tbrlIJ herein.
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90. Defendants discriminated against Daynu Horner on the basis of sex.
91. Defendants treated Dayna Homer less favorably in the terms and conditions of
employment in that Defendants paid Uayn3 Horner less favorably than similarly situated male
employees.
92. Defendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred in the
workplacc.
93. Defendants knew or should have known about the discriminatory conduct, yet failed to

take prompt and effective remedial actions.
94. Defcndanb conduct was intcntional and malicious and in wanton and willful disregard of
the rights of others.
95. The disparate trealment 10 which Defendants have subjected Dayna Homer is in violation
of the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 eL seq.
WHEREFORE, Plaintifl: Dayna Horner, demands judgment against all Defendants tor lost
wagcs and benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
attorney's fees and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

COUNTY
Hostile Work Environment Based on Race, Color. and/or National
Oriein as to Leiehanne Revnolds in Violation of the New Jersev Law A1!.ainst
Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 ft. seq.
<)6.

Plaintiffs incorporate the averments of all preceding allegations of this Complaint as

though fully set forth herein.
97. Detendants subjected Reynolds to a hostile environment based on race, color, and/or
national origin.
91::. The cumulative effect of the discriminatory and hostile Ctlvironment created and
condoned by Defendants created a racially hostile work environment that
19
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to make reasonable women in the Plaintiffs' position bclicvc that the conditions vf

employment were altered and the working environment was hostile al)d!"r abusive.

99. The work cnvironment consisted of frequent racially charged comments and conduct,
much of which was directed at PlaintitfReynolds and caused a racially hostile work environment
that was unreasonable and unhealthy for Plaintiff Reynolds. Plaintiff Reynolds was forced to
resign from her employment between March 2002 through May 2002.
100.

Defendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occuned in the

workplace.
101.

Defendants knew or should havc known about the discriminatory conduct, yet

tailed to take prompt and effective remedial actions.
102.

Defendants discriminated against Plaintifls in the (erms and conditions of their

employment.
103.

Defendants conduct was intentional and malicious and m wanton and willful

disregard of the rights of others.
104.

The hostile work environment to which Defendants have subjected Reynolds is

)n

violation ofthe New Jersey Law Against Disclimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et. seq.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Reynolds, demands judgment against all Defendants for lost wages
and benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest, attorney's fees
and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT V}
Discrimination on the Basis of Race, Color, and/or National Origin Against Lcighanne
Reynolds in Violation of the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et.
seg.
I 05,

Plaintin:~

incorporate the '-\vernlents of all preceding allegations of this Compi;lint

as though fully set forth herein.
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Defendants discriminated against Reynolds because of race, color and/or national

origin.
107.

Defimdants treated Reynolds

le~s

favorably in the tenns and conditions of her

employment after discovering that her son was of Afbcan American and American Indian
descent by reprimanding her, refusing to answer her questions and treating her less favorably
than other employees.
108.

Defcndants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred in the

workplace.
109.

Defendants knew or should have known about the discriminatory conduct, yct

failed to take prompt and effective remedial actions.
110.

Defendants conduct was intentional and malicious and in wanton and willful

disregard of the rights of others.
111.

The disparate treatment to which Defendants have subjected Reynold,

IS 111

violation of the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et. seq.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Reynolds, demands judgment against all Defendants for lost wages
and benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest, attorney's fees
and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
COUNT VII
Constructive Discharge in Violation oftbe
New Jersey Law Against Discrimination. N.J. S.A. 10:5-1 et. seq.
112.

Plaintiffs incorporate the avennents of all preceding allegations of this Complaint

as though full y set forth herein.
I 13.

Deltmdan!s knowingly pemlit!ed an intimidating, hostile amI offensive workplace.
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The continuous pattern of discriminatory treatment to which Defendants subjected

Plainti n~ was so intolerable that Eileen Homer, Danelle Homer, Dayna Homer, Reynolds and
Hobo were forced to resign.
)) 5,

Defendants forced resignation of Plaintiffs is in violation of the New Jersey Law

Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5·1 eL seq.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demands judgment against all Defendants for lost wages and
benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest, attorney's fees and
such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
COUNT VIII
Aiding and Abetting by Richard Roche, .John P. Brown, Peter Wood,
AI Av.ila and Michael Alfano in Violation of.he New .Jersey Law Against Discrimination,
N..J. S.A. 10:5·1 et. seq.
Plaintiffs incorporate the averments of all preceding allegations of this Complaint

116.

as though fully set forth herein.
117.

Defendants Roche, Drown, Wood, Avila and Alfano aided and abetted the entity

defendants in discriminating against Plaintiffs because of sex, race, color and/or national origin
and in the creation of a work environment that was hostile on the hasis of sex, race, color and/or
national origin.
118.

Defendants Roche, Brown, Wood, Avila and Alfano knew or should have known

ofthe discriminatory environment that was pennitted to exist.
119.

Defendants Roche, Brown, Wood, Avila and Alfano knew or should have Imown

about Plaintiffs complaints of discrimination and the hostile work environment, but failed to take
prompt, effective remedial action.
120.

Defendants Avila and Alfano participated in direct acts of discrimination and

participated in the creation of a hostile w()rk environment.
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Ddendants Roch<:, Brown, Wood, Avila lllld Alfano substantially a~si~ted the

entity defendants in discriminating against Plaintiffs and creating a h051il<: work environment.
122.

Ddendunts have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred in the

workplace as aiders and ab<:ttors.
123.

Ddendants conduct was intentional and malicious and in wanton and willful

disregard of the rights of others.
124.

Defendants Roche, Brown, Wood, Avila and Alfano's conduct in aiding and

abetting the discriminatory conduct of the Entity Defendants is in violation
Law Against Discrimination, N.J. S.A. 10:5-1

eL

or tbe New Jersey

seq.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against all Delendants for lost wages and
benefits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest, attorney's fees and
such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

COLJNTIX
Violation of the Equal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. §206(d)(1)
125.

Plaintitl'S incOlporate the averments of all preceding allegations of this Complaint

as though fully set forth herein.
126.

Entity Defendants paid male employees more than Dayna Homer f()r substantially

equal work.
127.

Entity Defendants' conduct of paying Donald Kcrmcdy the $9.50 per hour for

part-time cmployment while refusing to do so f(l[ Dayna Homer is in violation of the Equal Pay
Act, 29 U.S.C. §206(d)(l).
WHEREFORE, Plaintifj: Dayna Horner, demands judgment against all Defendants for lost
wages and benefits, and liquidated damages, plus costs, interest, aUomey's fees and such other
relief as the Court deems just and proper.
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COUNT X

Discrimination on the Basis of Sex in Violation of Title Vll of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as Amended

128.

Plaintiffs incorporate the avemlents of all preceding allegations of this Complaint

as though fhlly set fOlth herein.
129.

As sel /ilfth above, Plaintiffs suffered severc and pervasive discrimination on the

basis of their sex that detrimentally affectcd the terms and conditions of their employment,
including repeated, crude, and indecent comments, coupled with the unwanted touching and
sexual advances directed at Plaintiffs.
130.

Plaintiffs were subjected to a hostile work environment. Entity Defendants had

responsibility f()r the discriminatory actions taken in the workplace by Plaintiff);' supervisors and
co~workers.

131.

The discrimination to which Plaintiffs were subjected was so severe and pervasive

as to detrimentally affect reasonable women in Plaintiffs' positions.
132.

Entity Detendants discriminatory conduct is in violation of Title V11 or the Civil

Rights Act of 1964,42 U.S.c. §2000e, as amended by 42 U.S.C. § 1981 a.
133.

Entity Dcfcndants discriminated against Plaintiffs with malice and reckless

indifference to their rights.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against all Entity Defendants for lost wages and
benefits, Iront pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest, attorney's fees and
such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

24

Case 1:03-cv-02796-RMB-AMD

Document 10

Filed 08/22/2003

Page 25 of 28

COUNT XI
Discrimination on the Basis of Se~ Against Eileen Homer
in Violation of Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. as Amended.
134.

Plaintills incorporate the avennents of all preceding allegations of thiR Complaint

as though fully set forth herein.
135.

Entity Defendants treated Eileen Horner less favorably in hcr tenJ1S and

conditions of employment than similarly situated male employees by paying her on less
favorable terms and requiring bel' to work marc hours.
136.

Entity Defendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that oCCUlTed

in the workplace.
137.

Entity Defendants knew or should have known about the discriminatory conduct,

yet failed to take prompt and effective remedial actions.
13il.

Entity Defendants discriminated against Plaintiff Eileen Homer with malice and

reckless indifference to their rights.
139.

Entity Defendants discrimination on the basis of sex is in violation of Title VII or

the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C §2000e, as amended by 42 U.S.C § 1981 'I.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Eileen Homer, demands judgmcnt against Entity Defendants It)r
lost wages and benefits, front p'ly, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
attorney's fces and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
COUNTxn
Discrimination on the Basis of Sex Aeainst Danelle Horner
in Violation of Title VII o!'the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as Amended.
140.

Plaintifis incorporate the avennents of all preceding allegations of this Complaint

as though fully set f(.lrth herein.
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Entity DctL'I1dants treated DanelJe Homer I~ss favorably in the ttlmlS and

conditions of her employment by rcnlsing to consider hm qualifications lor a position and filling
the position with men.
142.

Entity Dcfendants have responsibility for the discriminatory conduct that occurred

in the workplace.
143.

Entity DefClldants knew or should have known about the discriminatory conduct,

yet failed to take prompt and effecti ve remedial actions.
144.

Entity Defendants discriminated i.lgainst PlaintifT Danelle lIomer with malice and

reckless indifference to their rights.
145.

Entity Defendants discrimination on the basis of sex is in violation of Title Vll or

the Civil Rights Act of 1964,42 O.S.c. §2000e, as amended by 42 U.S.C. §1981a.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Danelle Homer, demands judgment against Entity Defendants for
lost wages and benefits, fhmt pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
attorney'S fecs and such other relief as the Court decms just i.lnd proper.
COUNT XIII
Discrimination on the Basis of Sex Against DaynaHorner
in Violation of Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as Amended.

146.

Plaintifts incorporate the avenncnts ofal! preceding allegations of this Complaint

as though ful!y sct tillih herein.
147.

Entity Defendants discriminated against Dayna Homer on the hasis of sex.

148.

Entity Defendants treated Dayna Horner less favorably in the terms and

conditions of in that Defendants paid Dayna Homer less favorably than similarly situated male
employees.
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Entity Defendants havc responsibility It)r the discriminatory conduct that occurred

in the workplace.

J 50.

Entity Defcndants knew or should have known about thc discriminatory conduct,

yet failcd 10 take prompt and effcctive remedial actions.
151.

Entity Dcfendants discriminated against Plaintiff Dayna Homer with malice and

reckless indill"erence to their rights.
152.

Entity Defendants discrimination on the basis of sex is in violation of Title Vll or

the Civil Rights Act of1964, 42 U.S.c. §2000e, as amended by 42 U.S.c. § 1981a.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Dayna Homer, demands judgment against Entity Dcllmdants tor
lost wagcs and bcnelits, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
al!omey's fees and such other rclicf as (he COUtt deems just and proper.

COUNT XIV
Disc."illlination Against Reynolds on the Basis of Race, Color and/or National Origin in
Violation of Title Vll of the Civil .Rights Act of 1964, as Amended
J 53.

Plainliff.~ incorporate the averments of all preceding allegations of thi~ Complaint

as though Jully set forth herein.
154.

As set forth

ahove,

Plaintiff Reynolds ~uffered severe and pervasivc

discrimination on the basis of race, color and/or national origin that detrimentally affected the
tenns and conditions of her employmcnt, induding repeated, racc based comments, hostile
treatment and refusal by supervisors to assi~t her.

J55.

Plaintiff was subjected to a hostile work cnvironment and disparate treatment

because of her association with her son, a palt A/ncan American, part American Indian
individuaI.
J 56.

Entity Defendants had responsibility tor the di~criminatory adi(m~ tilken in the

workplace by Plaintiff's supervisors and co-workers.
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'1 'he discrimination to which Plaintiff Reynolds was subjected was so severe and

pervasive as to detrimentally affect reasonahle WOmen in Plaintiff's positions.
158.

Entity Defendants discriminatory conduct is in violation of Title VI! or the Civil

Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000e, as amended by 42 U.S.c. § 1981 a.
159.

Entity Defendants discriminated against Plaintiff with malice and reckless

inditIerence to their rights.
160.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Reynolds, demands judgment against Entity Defendants

t'Or lost wages and benet!!s, front pay, compensatory and punitive damages, plus costs, interest,
attomey's fces and such other relief as the Court deems - sl and

Dated: August 21, 2003

R EE C. VIDAL
TARA A. MOSIER
CURETON CAPLAN, P.C.
950B Chester Avenue
Delran, NJ 08075

JURY DEMAND
Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury with respect to all issues r .

Dated: August 21, 2003

R NEE C. VIDAL
TARA A. MOSIER
CURETON CAPLAN, P.c.
950B Chester Avenue
Delran, NJ 08075
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